
Mark Saccoccio  
Town Clerk  

  01525 631920 
      info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk 

 

 

 
Council Chamber, The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, Bedfordshire, LU7 

1HD. 

Friday, 1 March 2019 
 
To:  Members of the Cultural & Economic Committee (Councillors S Cotter, G Perham, 
D Bowater, A Brandham, C Chambers, M Freeman, F Kharawala and S Rahman) 
(Copies to all Town Councillors for information) 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

 
You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of Cultural & Economic Committee to 
be held on Monday, 11 March 2019 commencing at 7.30 pm in the Council Chamber, 
The White House, Hockliffe Street, Leighton Buzzard, 
Bedfordshire, LU7 1HD..  

 
M Saccoccio  
Town Clerk 

AGENDA 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 

 Schedule 12 of the Local Government Act 1972 requires a record be kept of the 
Members present and that this record form part of the minutes of the meeting. 
Members who cannot attend a meeting should tender apologies to the Town 
Clerk. 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

 (i) Under the Localism Act 2011 (sections 26-37 and Schedule 4) and in 
accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct, Members are required to 
declare any interests which are not currently entered in the Member’s 
Register of Interests or if he/she has not notified the Monitoring Officer of it.  

 
(ii) Should any Member have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in an item on 

the agenda, the Member may not participate in consideration of that item 
unless a Dispensation has first been requested (in writing) and granted by 
the Council (see Dispensation Procedure). 

 

3.   QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC  

 

 To receive questions and statements from members of the public in respect of 
any item of business included in the agenda, as provided for in Standing Order 
No.s 1(f) and 1(h). 
 

THIS MEETING MAY 
BE RECORDED * 

Public Document Pack

mailto:info@leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk
http://www.leightonlinslade-tc.gov.uk/


CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE Monday, 11 March 2019 
 

 

 

4.   MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 To receive and approve as a correct record the minutes of the Cultural and 
Economic Services Committee meetings held on 10 December 2018. 
 

5.   SUB-COMMITTEE AND TASK GROUP MINUTES (Pages 7 - 10) 

 

 To receive the draft minutes of the following meeting (to follow) and to consider 
any recommendations contained therein: 
 
(i) Market Sub-Committee 28 February 2019 
 

6.   COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN (Pages 11 - 16) 

 

 a. To receive the Committee objectives and work plan for 2018-2019 
(based on the Town Council Three Year Plan) (attached). 

 
b. To receive the Committee objectives and work plan for 2019 - 2020 

(based on the new Town Council Three Year Plan 2010 - 2024) 
(attached). 

 

7.   TACTIC UPDATE (Pages 17 - 20) 

 

 To receive an update report regarding TACTIC activity during January and 
February 2019 and consider the recommendation/s contained therein. 
(attached) 
 

8.   BUDGET REPORT (Pages 21 - 24) 

 

 To receive a report and consider recommendations therein (to follow). 
 

9.   YOUTH FILM CLUB (Pages 25 - 30) 

 

 To receive a report on the proposed pilot scheme and consider the 
recommendations therein. (attached) 
 

10.   ALLOCATION OF S106 FUNDS REPORT (Pages 31 - 32) 

 

 To receive a report on proposed spend and consider the recommendations 
therein. (attached) 
 

11.   SERVICE UPDATES  

 

 To receive verbal updates on: 
 

        Judicial Review 
• Community Events Programme 
• Best Bar None Update  



CULTURAL & ECONOMIC COMMITTEE Monday, 11 March 2019 
 

 

 

• Pigeon Management 
• Electronic Signs 
• Town Centre Architectural Lighting Scheme 
• Youth Promise Award 
• Summary of work activity 
 

12.   TOWN BAND (Pages 33 - 34) 

 

 To receive a report regarding the concept of a Town Band (attached) and to 
conside the recommendation/s contained therein. 
 

* Phones and other equipment may be used to film, audio record, tweet or blog from this meeting by an individual Council member, 
officer or member of the public.  No part of the meeting room is exempt from public filming unless the meeting resolves to go into 
exempt session.  The use of images or recordings arising from this is not within the Council’s control. 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

                                                                                                                                      Page 50 

   
LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 

 
CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE 

 
10 DECEMBER 2018 AT 1930 HOURS 

 
Present: Councillors:  D Bowater 
  C Chambers 
  S Cotter – in the Chair 
  J M Freeman 
  F Kharawala  
          
Also in attendance:   M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
 V Cannon (Head of Cultural & Economic 

Services) 
 T Quinn (TACTIC Manager)  
 S Jewell (Best Bar None Co-ordinator) 
 M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
  
  

                    Members of the public: 0 
Members of the press:  0 

 
 

  

142/CE APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence had been received and were accepted from Councillor 
G Perham. 

 
143/CE DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made. 
 

144/CE QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
  
 There were no questions from the public. 
 
145/CE MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 The Committee received the draft minutes of the previous committee 

meetings held on 3 September and 15 October 2018. 
 
 An amendment to the minutes of 15 October 2018 at para 141/CE was 

requested to correct an incorrect budget code reference from 970/9507, to 
read 970/9057.  

 
 RESOLVED that the minutes of the Cultural and Economic Services 

Committee held on 3 September 2018 and 15 October 2018 be approved 
as a correct record with the correction and were signed accordingly. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



Cultural and Economic Services Committee  10 DECEMBER 2018       
____________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  Page  51 

 
146/CE SUB COMMITTEE AND TASK GROUP MINUTES 
 
 The Committee received the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 

meeting held on the 29 November  2018 for consideration. 
 

RESOLVED to receive the draft minutes of the Market Sub-Committee 
meeting held on 29 November 2018.  

 
147/CE  MIND SPACE PROJECT  
 
 By invitation, Mr D Elliott of The MIND Space Project gave a presentation on 

the work of the Project.  The project hoped to provide a group where people 
could go with low risk mental health issues where they could access  peer-
to-peer group support through exercise, nutrition and well-being self help 
coping mechanisms.   

 
 The Project would offer a 12 week programme called ‘Worrier to Warrior’ 

offering a group for like-minded people  in a safe and secure environment to 
encourage the individual to self manage their recovery. 

 
 The next presentation for the pilot would be made to Kate Conroy, Clinical 

Commisioning Group on the 7 January and from there it would be decided 
how and if to proceed. 

 
 Thanks were given to Mr Elliott for his presentation and Leighton-Linslade 

Town Council supported the idea and looked forward to being informed of 
how the Project would progress. 

 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
148/CE COMMUNITY EVENTS UPDATE  
 
 The Committee received a progress report on community events including 

Living History Day, Christmas Festival Weekend and Small Business 
Saturday.  

 
 The feedback received on the Living History Day was positive despite the wet 

weather and The Christmas Festival Weekend had been successfully 
delivered with the introduction of the ‘People’s Vote’ for the switch on of the 
lights proving very popular with the community. A financial report will be 
provided to the Committee at the next meeting. 

 
 It was noted on Small Business Saturday point 4.6 the ‘budget available for 

the campaign, £200’ to be amended to £250.  The date for Small Business 
Saturday next year would be 7 December 2019. 

 
 In the spirit of collaborative working it was agreed that the Town Clerk would 

write to the Chair of LBFirst to discuss the working relationship and how this 
be recognised at future Christmas Light Switch On events.      

 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

Page 2



Cultural and Economic Services Committee  10 DECEMBER 2018       
____________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  Page  52 

149/CE TEENAGE ADVICE AND INFORMATION CENTRE  
 
 The Committee received and considered  a report to update members of work 

undertaken at TACTIC during September and October 2018 including the 
Youth Work Programme, staffing, hire of the premises and youth counselling 
provider. 

 
 The premises had now been available for hire for twelve months and the 

charges initially set have been re-evaluated to be more realistic to a town 
centre location. There were currently 25 hours hire available of  which 18.7 
hours were reserved with a total of 11 user groups accessing the centre at 
varying times including evenings and a Saturday.   

 
 The Committee was informed that CHUMS are due to sign a Service Level 

Agreement  to provide an emotional well-being service which would begin on 
3 January 2019 with a pilot running until the end of March 2019 which would 
then be reviewed. 

 
 The Committee wanted to give their thanks to the young people from TACTIC 

who attended and assisted at the Remembrance Day events, both in the day 
and in the evening.  On behalf of Committee, the Town Clerk agreed to write  
a letter of thanks to each young person who helped at the event. 

 
 RESOLVED to endorse an increase of hire charges for the TACTIC 

facility from 1 April 2019 onwards as set out in para 3.4 and that charges 
are reviewed annually, in keeping with Council-wide fees and charges. 

 
150/CE HERITAGE TRAIL  
 
 The Committee received and considered a report to seek Member 

endorsement in the creation of a Social Heritiage Trail.  Two options were 
offered. Option A would use an App developed specifically for Leighton-
Linslade Town Council, where users download the app for free and walk to 
each trail point identified by a physical  way marker.  Links could be clicked 
on the app to find out interesting historical facts.  Option B would provide web 
pages integrated into the Leighton-Linslade Town Council website. Users 
would log into the website in the High Street and follow the trail from their 
phone/ipad.  This would mean using their own data allowance if no street Wi-
Fi available.  Both Option A and Option B would include a physical map/guide 
in the cost.   

 
 Up to 16 locations could be included in the trail with way markers to mark 

each point.  The Committee agreed  that the silhouette way markers would 
be a more interesting way to mark each trail location.  The total estimated 
cost of Option A would be £29,865 and Option B would be £20,615. 

 
 RESOLVED to  
 

1.1 recommend to Council that option A be endorsed. 
1.2 recommend to Council that a set-up budget of up to £40,000 (to 

include any contingency) be allocated to the project utilising the 
ringfenced budget (£122,000). 

Page 3



Cultural and Economic Services Committee  10 DECEMBER 2018       
____________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  Page  53 

1.3 recommend to Council that the first year’s running costs of £7,000 
for financial year 2020/21, be allocated form the same ringfenced 
budget (£122,000). 

 
151/CE MARKET TOWN REGENERATION FUNDED PROJECTS (MTRF)  
  
 The Committee received a verbal update on the variable signage project and 

were advised that installation would be taking place approximately 15th 
January 2019.   Once installed they would be publically  acknowledged 
including Central Bedfordshire Council in the announcement. 

  
 The Architectural Lighting project was still on-going with the Surveyor now 

contacting the relevant bodies to discuss the plans and confirm permissions. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the information. 
 
152/CE DRAFT BUDGET 2019/2020  
 
 The Committee received and considered a draft budget report for 2019/2020.    
 
 RECOMMENDED to the Policy and Finance Committee to approve the 

proposed budget for Cultural & Economic Services for the financial year 
2019-2020. 

 
153/CE BUDGET REPORT  
 
 The Committee received a budget update report for the revenue budget and 

earmarked reserves. 
 
 RECOMMENDED to 
 

1.1 Policy and Finance to carry forward into earmarked reserves 
unspent monies from financial year 2018/19 from budget codes 
4412, 4509 and 4554  for reasons set out in para 2.3:. 

1.2 Policy and Finance to carry forward existing earmarked reserves for 
reasons set out in para 2.4.2, in APPENDIX B, for budget codes 
9018, 9020, 9022, 9026, 9028, 9055. 

 
154/CE COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN 
 
 The Committee received the Committee Objectives and Work Plan for the 

current year, in accordance with the Town Council’s Three Year plan.   
 
 It was noted and added to the Work Plan  that at the meeting on 12 March 

2019 a verbal update would be given regarding the Youth Promise Grant 
Scheme and written reports on Town Centre Wi-Fi and Pigeon Management. 

 
  RESOLVED to note the Committee objectives and work plan for 2018-

2019. 
 
  
155/CE TOWN COUNCIL’S FIVE YEAR PLAN 
 

Page 4



Cultural and Economic Services Committee  10 DECEMBER 2018       
____________________________________________________________________ 

                                                                                                                                  Page  54 

 The Committee received the future objectives for inclusion in the Town 
Council’s next Five-Year Plan to continue to support a vibrant town through 
partnership working and initiatives including management of the street 
market, support for local businesses and town and community promotions.  

 
 In principle the Committee accepted the objectives but it was agreed to review 

and amend the wording of objective 30. 
 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
 
The meeting closed at 2117 hours. 
 
I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE 
RECORD OF THE MEETING HELD ON 3 SEPTEMBER 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
Chair                           11 MARCH 2019 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



 

Page 58 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
 

MARKETS SUB-COMMITTEE 
 

THURSDAY 28 FEBRUARY 2019 AT 1030 HOURS 
 

Present:  Councillors  J M Freeman  
  T Morris 
  F Kharawala 
  D Bowater 
             S Cotter 
    K Cursons 
    A Dodwell   
   

                      Also in attendance:       V Cannon (Head of Cultural and Economic  
  Services)  
  M Saccoccio (Town Clerk) 
  Adrian Harrison (Market Manager) 
  M Jahn (Committee Officer) 
  Chloe Peters 
  Dave Gibbins (Market Trader Representative)  
      
  
            Members of the Public: 0 
            Members of the Press: 0 
  
 

122/MK APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Peter Elmore and Councillor D 
Bowater substituted by Councillor A Dodwell. 

 
123/MK DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

 
Members were asked to declare any interests, including the nature of those 
interests, which they had in any of the items under consideration at this 
meeting.  No declarations were made.  
 

124/MK QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
  There were no questions from the public. 

   
125/MK MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING  

 
The Sub-Committee received the draft minutes of the previous meeting, held 
on 29 November 2018 for consideration.  
 
RESOLVED that the minutes of the Markets Sub-Committee meeting held 
on 29 November 2018 be approved as a correct record and were signed 
accordingly. 
 

126/MK MARKET GENERAL UPDATE 
    

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



Market Sub-Committee 28 FEBRUARY 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 59 

 The Sub-Committee received an update report on market activity including 
information on delivery against market plan targets, trader recruitment and 
promotion and marketing of the market.  

 
 It was noted that although eight traders had left the market another nine 

permanent traders had joined since the relaunch.  Increased numbers of 
casual traders were attending selling toys, bedding, cosmetics, pet food and 
jewellery providing a more varied range of products for customers.  Some 
casual traders become permanent and some permanent traders make the 
choice to change to casual traders, depending on their circumstances.  

 
 The market team held an Introduction to Market Trading workshop in January 

2019 which was attended by three new start-ups.  One was an existing trader 
from the Pop-Up market who wanted to improve her presentation skills and the 
other two were new start-ups wanting advice on promotion and selling of their 
products, tax, accountants and market rules. 

 
 The Sub-Committee discussed the importance of social media as a marketing 

tool to promote the market and whether using Facebook, Instagram or Twitter 
actually improved engagement and footfall at the market.  It was agreed that 
social media was a positive tool for promoting the market and the traders 
should be encouraged to use all social media platforms to promote their 
products and bring to the attention of the public all offers, discounts and deals 
available on their stalls. 

 
 The Sub-Committee were informed the Market Team had secured Street Food 

Heroes (SFH) for the summer period starting on Friday 26 April, 4.00 pm to 
9.00 pm.  SFH are a group of food traders that visit different towns one evening 
a month bringing a different selection of artisan street foods, music and a 
mobile bar.   

 
A question was raised regarding the adverse weather procedure and changing 
the terminology used within this policy.  Members agreed that a Task & Finish 
Group be formed to include traders to review the Leighton Buzzard Market 
Cancellation Policy 2017. 

 
 The Sub-Committee agreed the updated version of the Charity Stall Guidelines 

as laid out and to recommend to the Policy and Finance Committee for 
endorsement. 

 
 RECOMMEND to Policy & Finance Committee that it endorses the 

updated version of the Charity Stall Guidelines as per para 7 Appendix A. 
      
 RESOLVED to note the report. 

 
127/MK BUDGET REPORT 
   

The Sub-Committee received a budget report for October to December 2018. 
  

RESOLVED to note the report. 
 

Page 8



Market Sub-Committee 28 FEBRUARY 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 60 

128/MK RESPONSES TO TRADER REPRESENTATIVES 
 
 The Committee received and considered a report regarding Leighton Buzzard 

Market Responses to trader information.  The report had been deferred from 
the original date of 29 November 2018 due to the Judicial Review.  The 
hearing had taken place and the Claimant’s case was dismissed on 15 
February 2019.  

 
A question was raised regarding the use of more than three gazebos per stall 
and members agreed at present the policy states up to three gazebos only, but 
this would be monitored and depending on demand, storage and finance, 
agreed that officers would consider the request at a later date. 

 
 RESOLVED to 
 

1.1 note the receipt of the second sheet of signatures and continue to 
monitor current market policy applications. 

1.2 note the proposed multi-pitch discounted gazebo idea; to decline the 
pitch fee proposals for traders using their own stall equipment and 
continue monitoring application of the current market pitch fee 
policy. 

1.3 endorse that the allocation of the four ‘holiday’ days per market for 
new permanent traders be awarded after a continued attendance for 
three months, and that allocation is pro rata for financial year. 

1.4 decline the request for the use of four gazebos 
1.5 maintain the current placement of speciality market pitches with 

variation to location of pop-up pitches. 
1.6 decline the request to move the date of Linslade Canal festival 

 
129/MK TWELVE MONTH MARKET REVIEW  
 
 The Committee received and considered a report reviewing the market after 

relaunch a year ago.  This report was also deferred from 29 November 2018 
until completion of the Judicial Review which took place on the 15 February 
2019.   

 
 It was noted that the relocation of the bollards around the market cross was 

still pending as officers await Central Bedfordshire Council’s completion of 
surface repairs which would be dependent on utility service repairs/renewal 
being completed. 

 
 One year from relaunch the stall counts show a consistent level of traders 

being maintained. With awareness of the national picture of High Streets and 
markets, increasing the sale of pitches remains a priority.  The current market 
provided a range of product categories including food products, footwear, 
clothing, stationery, jewellery, homeware, bags/luggage and pet food.  Officers 
would continue to monitor the statistics reporting back to members annually. 

 
 RESOLVED to note the report. 
  

 

Page 9



Market Sub-Committee 28 FEBRUARY 2019   
                                                                                                                                                                 
 

Page 61 

The meeting closed at 1145 hours. 

 

I HEREBY CONFIRM THAT THE FOREGOING IS A TRUE AND ACCURATE RECORD 
OF THE MEETING HELD ON 28 FEBRUARY 2019. 

 

 

Chair 23 MAY 2019  

 

Page 10



  

Page 1 of 3 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
CULTURAL & ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE  

WORK PLAN 2018-2019 (INCORPORATING OBJECTIVES 2015-2018) 
 

Cultural & Economic Services Strategic Objectives for 2015-2018 (from Town Council Three Year Plan) 
 

Objective 
ref.no. (3 
Yr Plan) 

Objective Timescale Comments 

14 Expand the reach of TACTIC by initiating a 
“hub & spoke” model across the town. As 
per Development Plan 

Sept 2017 
 
Nov 2017 
Dec 2017 

Workshops in schools - schools offer project/ PSHE - in progress (delayed 
waiting for new worker to lead on) COMMENCED, Autumn 2017 
Annual achievement awards event DELIVERED, December 2017 
Satisfaction survey 

20 Secure a three year Christmas lighting 
contract 

31 July 2018 
 

Secure new 3yr Christmas Lighting Contract for 2018-2020. 
Inclusion in 2018/19 Committee work plan  

23 Review and update the Market Development 
and Business Plan. 

ongoing COMPLETED - Development plan endorsed May 2016.  
Monitoring updates are provided to Market Sub Committee.  
Market relaunch merges with this work via the Market Town Regeneration 
Fund projects and some actions may be superseded by relaunch activity. 

24 2014 Residents’ survey: progress actions as 
agreed, following resident feedback. 
Themes: communications, market, parking, 
lighting, entertainment. 

31 March 
2018 

COMPLETED - Actions subsumed into Market Town Regeneration Fund 
(MTRF) application. Three projects awarded funding. Proposals for non 
MTRF funded actions being pursued separately via Policy & Finance 
Committee. 

25 Review and update the Tourism Strategy. 
Visitor economy 

 Budget funds used for supporting the development of visitor information and 
items that celebrate and explain the town’s assets and its history (503/4920) 

34 Celebrate the heritage of the Parish through 
information, interactive exhibits or 
educational resources. Consider a Town 
Trail or continuing celebration of the town’s 
connections with The Borrowers. 

31 March 
2018 

Historic legacy project proposals presented to committee during 2016 and 
deferred for future consideration. Deferred to 2018/19 work plan. 

37 Secure external funding where possible, to 
develop existing and new sporting and 
leisure facilities.  

ongoing Also sits in Grounds & Environment Services Committee. 
This item is reflected in Committee’s Terms of Ref. No. 4, To keep under 
review the need for additional community facilities and make 
recommendations to Council as to how to satisfy such need. 

40 Continue to improve walking routes to the 
town centre, railway station and local 
schools. 

ongoing CBC officers will receive feedback at any time from Committee on ideas, 
concerns and issues identified. 

 

P
age 11

A
genda Item

 6



  

Page 2 of 3 

 
WORK PLAN 2018-2019 

 

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2018-2019 

23 April 2018 Youth Promise Grant  
 

Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications 

 13 June  2018 TACTIC 
Market update (Sub Committee 
minutes) 
MTRF project updates (verbal) 
Youth Promise Grant  
Events  
Best Bar None 
 

Town centre business confidence and user survey – receive final report (deferred to 
13/09/18) 
Town centre pigeon management – options for endorsement (deferred to 03/09/18) 
Christmas lighting 3-year scheme (2018 – 2020) – endorse scheme/contractor 
TACTIC – 3-year development plan (2018 – 2020) (deferred to 15/10/18) 

23 July 2018 Youth Promise Grant  
 

Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications 

03 September 2018 
 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Youth Promise Grant  
Events  
Best Bar None 
 

Town centre history project – project outline proposal (deferred to 15/10/18) 
Town centre wifi  
Town centre pigeon management – options for endorsement 
TACTIC 3-year delivery plan (2018 – 2020) 
Town centre business confidence and user survey – receive final report (To be presented to 
full Council on 24/09/18) 
 

15 October 2018 Youth Promise Grant  
 

Meeting convened pending receipt of grant applications. 
Review of events programme and budget recommendations for 2019/20.  
Best Bar None evaluation and budget recommendations for 2019/20. 
Town centre history project – project outline proposal. 
 
 

10 December 2018 
 
 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Youth Promise Grant  
Events  
Best Bar None 
 
 

Consider priority projects for inclusion in the 2019/20 budget.  
 

P
age 12



  

Page 3 of 3 

12 March 2019 
 
  

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Youth Promise Grant  
Events 
Best Bar None 
 

Town Centre Wi-Fi 
Town Centre Pigeon Management 
 

 

 

P
age 13



T
his page is intentionally left blank

P
age 14



  

Page 1 of 2 

LEIGHTON-LINSLADE TOWN COUNCIL 
CULTURAL & ECONOMIC SERVICES COMMITTEE  WORK PLAN 2019-2020  

 

Incorporating Cultural & Economic Services Strategic Objectives for 2019-2024 (from Town Council Three Year Plan) 
 

VIBRANCY AND VITALITY OF TOWN AND TOWN CENTRE 
 

Comments 

To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working and initiatives including management of the 
street market, support for local businesses, town and community promotions and town centre enhancements. 

 

 

This work will be primarily within the remit of the Cultural & Economic Services Committee. 
 

 

17 To consider delivery of a Town Ranger service. 
 

 

18 To promote the creation of a soft play facility within the town. 
 

 

19 To identify, promote and celebrate the unique features and heritage of the Parish to both residents and visitors. 
 

 

20 To consider taking on additional services, where practicable and where considered beneficial to the town. 
 

 

21 To promote the town centre as a safe and vibrant place to visit in the evening. 
 

 

22 Consider the provision of town centre Wi-Fi (including footfall monitoring facility). 
 

 

23 To continue to manage, promote and develop the street market. 
 

 

24 To continue to deliver quality community events and regularly review their scope and delivery. 
 

 

25 To consider ways to work with town centre businesses to achieve digital/ on-line commerce options and promote the 
town’s shopping/ leisure offer. 
 

 

26 To consider ways to support the increase in leisure and personal development opportunities for youth. 
 

 

27 To consider ways to support the increase in leisure opportunities for older people. 
 

 

 
 
 

WORK PLAN 2019-2020 

P
age 15



  

Page 2 of 2 

 

Meeting Date Regular Updates Work Plan 2019-2020 

 
11 March 2019 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Youth Promise Grant  
Events 
Best Bar None 

Town Centre Wi-Fi – verbal update 
Town Centre Pigeon Management – verbal update 
 

  
03 June 2019 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Events 
Best Bar None 

Youth Promise Grant Evaluation 
Heritage Trail Update  

 
02 September 2019 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Events 
Best Bar None 

 

 
09 December 2019 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Events 
Best Bar None 

 

 
09 March 2019 

TACTIC 
Market update (Sub-Committee 
minutes) 
Budget monitoring 
Events 
Best Bar None 

 

 

P
age 16



 
 
 
 
 
Cultural & Economic Services Committee      

 
Date:    11 March 2019 
 
Title:   Update on TACTIC 
                                                                  November 2018 – January 2019 
 
Purpose of the Report: To ratify decision for core funding of Talk 

Time provision 
 
Contact Officer: Tracey Quinn, TACTIC Centre Manager

  
 

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan  – No 14. Expand the reach 
of TACTIC by initiating a “hub & spoke” model 
across the town. 

Implications:   

Financial √ Within existing budget 

Human Resources   

Operational/Service 
delivery 

√ General Update 

Procedural/Legal   

Risk/Health and Safety   

 
 

1. RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should members be minded, the proposals is: 
 
1.1   To endorse the continuation of the Talk-Space, contracted emotional  

wellbeing service for the next financial year, as per 4.4. 
 

2. YOUTH WORK: NOVEMBER 2018 TO JANUARY 2019 
 

 Youth forum members attended the WW1 Remembrance Day event on 
11/11/18 and three young people took part in the reading out the names of the 
fallen. Their WW1 Art Murals were also proudly on display for this public 
gathering. The works will be installed on the TACTIC garden wall for future 
display. 

 The annual Christmas meal for ‘older’ residents took place at Astral Park and 
41 people attended and enjoyed a 3-course meal and social get together. 
Donations were generously received from local shops toward the 
food/decorations. 

 The youth workers have been promoting the centre via outreach work and have 
attended three school assemblies and Central Bedfordshire College’s well-
being fayre. Following these attendances, an increase in the drop-in attendance 
has increased, mainly with under 16’s. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 7



 
  

 Pop Art workshops started in January and has been running for seven weeks. 
The project is funded through a Central Bedfordshire Council’s (CBC) Positive 
Activity Grant and sessions are well attended. 

 
 
3. Youth Forum 
 
3.1  The current Youth Forum (YF) project has seen the group working on a Top 

Ten Tips mental health handy size booklet for other young people. The YF also 
hope to take part in some future training to enable them to deliver peer 
awareness discussions on mental health. 

 
3.2 The YF is also involved in the CBC Children’s & Young People board. 

Representatives are involved in the youth manifesto event on 12th March where 
young people from across Bedfordshire will be sharing their concerns and 
discussing on key issues affecting young people. 

 
3.3     The YF group membership will be changing over the months ahead as older 

members move on and new, younger members, get involved. This natural 
change cycle will have an impact on the group’s work over the year until the 
group is re-established and formed. 

 
  
4. Talk–Space (Emotional Well-Being Service) 

 
41 At its meeting on 03/09/2018, Committee endorsed (Ref. 129/CE) the proposal 

and use of existing budget to secure a counselling service contract directly with 
a provider.  The Council through TACTIC, subsequently entered into a contract 
with CHUMs to deliver an emotional wellbeing service as a pilot service ending 
on 31st March 2019.  

 
4.2     A review of current delivery has taken place and the service is working well 

having experienced full take-up of appointments from the start of the contract. 
Referrals have mainly come from parents, doctor’s and through self-referral. A 
total of 12 young people will have received intensive support over this 12-week 
service period. 

 
4.4     The proposal is to continue the contract for the next budget year. During the 

year, officers will continue to seek alternative funding income and the attending 
of Health funded provision to take place at the centre.  

 
4.5  On 26 March 2019, the TACTIC Manager will be attending a county-wide 

Children and Young People's Mental Health and Wellbeing forum to gain 
information and participate in a general discussion on service provision locally.  

 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
  
5. Staffing Update 
 
5.1 All current staff have been updating their ‘safeguarding’ training as good 

practice and key staff have attended: multi-agency ‘county lines & gangs’ 
training days, ‘mental health first aiders’ and ‘emergency first aiders’ at work. 
 

5.2  The Centre Manager has been invited to sit on a BRIF (Building Resilience In  
Families) professional’s early intervention group. This will identify pre-support  
for families or young people in the Leighton/Linslade area. 

 
6 Statistics and Attendance 
 

              
 
6.1  There has been an increase of attendance with new under 16year olds 

attending the drop-in session after school. Comparison over the three years 
show there is a changing pattern in age groups attending and males/boys have 
stayed comparatively similar and an increase in more females/younger girls 
attending the centre. 

 
6.2 There have been 35 appointments held with specialist agencies: 

 

  4YP Talk-Space Totals 

Nov 18 7 0 7 

Dec 18 2 0 2 

Jan 19 6 20 26 

Total 15 20 35 

 
6.3 Individual 121 support with a TACTIC Youth Worker during November 2018 –  

January 2019 saw 94 undertaken, either via mentoring support or drop-in. The 
order of most presenting issues were: School, Family, Mental Health and 
Sexual Health. 

 
7 Future Project Work over the coming months include : 

 
 Monday - Music workshops 

Page 19



 
  

 Friday Foody - fun snacks / life skills 
 Easter Playscheme for 8 – 11yr olds 
 Easter Activity week for 12-19yr olds 
 Spring satellite sport project. 

 
END 

Page 20



 
 
 
 
 
Cultural and Economic Services Committee        

 
Date:   11 March 2019 
 
Title:   Budget update 
 
Purpose of the Report: To monitor Committee budgets 
 
Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Economic 

Development  

 

Corporate Objective/s  LLTC Three Year Plan – Aim 
2. Objective 19 

Implications:   
Financial √ Existing budgets 2018/19 and 

new financial year 2019/20 
budget. 

Human Resources   
Operational/Service 
delivery 

  

Procedural/Legal   
Risk/Health and Safety   

 

1. RECOMMENDATION/S 
 

Should members be minded the recommendation is to: 
 
1.1 Note the report. 

 
2 To allocate £5,592 (104/4000) from the TACTIC salaries budget towards 

the cost of contracted counselling services in addition to the allocation 
identified from Earmarked reserves (9020) as per 2.4, below.  

 
2. BUDGET INFORMATION 

 
2.2 Current year budget - Appendix A (attached) provides the budget account 

sheet for the 2018/19 financial year providing spend information to date. 
 
2.3 At its meeting on 03/09/18, Committee endorsed the proposed staff           

recruitment and counselling service (129/CE). It is proposed to utlise both the 
annual salaries budget, £5,592 and and earmarked reserves £6,000 to afford 
the contracted service. 

 
2.4 At its meeting on 25/02/19, (Ref. 460/PF) Policy and Finance Committee 

endorsed the carry forward of unspent budget along with existing earmarked 
reserves into the next financial year as recommended by Committee at its 
meeting on 10/12/18. Final carry forward amounts are yet to be confirmed. 

 

Page 21

Agenda Item 8



 
  
2.4 The table below provides detail regarding Committee’s current Earmarked 

reserves.  

Page 22



 
  
EMR (970)  Information / rationale Remaining 

(9018) 
Economic 
Development 
£28,914 
 

Spend / allocations to date:  
 
-Children’s Trail (as above 3.1) allocation of £2,600  
     This is committed and maintenance work will be 
      delivered in Spring 2019 
-Market promotion & trader recruitment activity of 
  £4,000 This is committed. 
-Town Centre Benchmarking Survey £3,300  spent 
-Contribution to Best Bar None 2019/20 scheme 
 
 

Less 
 
 
£2,600 
 
£4,000 
 
£3,300 
£1,000 
 
=£18,014 
Remaining 
to allocate 

   

(9019)  
Best Bar None 
£7,959 

Committee endorsed – partnership funding to be 
used to deliver the award scheme. 

Allocated 
£-0- 

   

(9020) TACTIC 
£11,329  
Inc. grants 
received 
 

Spend / allocations to date:  
 

 £576 RELATE 

 £1,588 CHUMS PILOT, Jan-Mar ‘19 

 £848 grant spend 

 £546 ad hoc spend (sign, etc) 
 

Indication of spend/allocation in 2019/20: 

 £6,000 CHUMS service after 31/03/2019 until 
April 2020 (ref: Agenda item 11/03/19) 

 £1,656 /TBC Replace/update 3x young 
people computers  

 £114 raised by young people for Homeless 
charity to be awarded 

Less 
 
 
 
 
£1,970 
 
 
 
£8,718 
 
=£1,589 
Remaining 
to allocate  

   

(9022) 
Community 
Access 
Defibrillators 
£2,595 

Un-used budget is rolled forward to facilitate 
maintenance, electricity supply and kit re-stock 
costs. To cover the remaining 7 years of the 
equipment’s life span.  
Agreed to be carried forward (Ref. 460/PF) 

 
 
 
=£2,595 
Remaining  
to allocate 

   

(9026) 
Cultural & 
Economic 
Services 
£39,700 

 
Agenda Item 9 – Youth Film Club allocation of 
£2,400 – pending Committee endorsement  
 
Agreed to be carried forward (Ref. 460/PF) 
 
 
 
 
 

Less 
£2,400 
 
=£37,300 
Remaining 
to allocate 

Page 23



 
  

 
END 

   

(9027) 
Town Centre 
Management  
£2,833  

Spend / allocations to date:  
 
2018/19 anticipated spend on town centre bench 
repairs at £2,028.88 
 
Should be spent this year. 

Less 
 
£2,028.88 
 
=£804.12 
Remaining 
to allocate 

   

(9028) 
Signage – 
proposed 
allocation of 
£4,865 

Committee endorsed to continue improving town 
centre signage. 
 
Friday Street/ Ropa Court signs -  Completed 
Total spend to date on signage works: 
 
Agreed to be carried forward (Ref. 460/PF) 

Less 
 
 
 
£1,036.21 
 
=£3,828.79 
Remaining 
to allocate 

   

(9055) 
Public 
Conveniences 
£53,881 

Committed for refurbishment works.  
Spend to date £42,856.51 (estimate final spend 
£51k) 
 
Agreed to be carried forward (Ref. 460/PF) 

Less 
£51,000 
 
=£3,881 
Remaining 
to allocate 

   

(9044) 
Christmas 
Festival 
£2,134 

Committed to use for 2018 event - carried over from 
previous year.   Spent 
 
 

Allocated 
to 2018 
event 
£-0- 

   

(9057) 
Community 
Projects 
£28,029 

 
 

-Committee endorsed - £2,000 for use in 2018/19 for 
the WWI Centenary Remembrance activity. 
(£1,913.75 used) 
-Awarded to Rotary Club - £1,500 (Ref. 127/CE) 
 

-(Ref. 140/CE) Remaining budget allocated to 
enhance the events programme with additional time 
and expenditure at Canal Festival, Band Concerts & 
Live TV Screening in financial years 2019/20, 
2020/21 & 2021/2022. (To review these changes 
after the first year before continuing for the 
remaining two years.) 1yr = £7,500 / 3yrs £22,500 
 
Agreed to be carried forward (Ref. 460/PF) 

Less 
 

£1,913.75 
 
 
£2,500.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
£22,500 
 
=£1,115.25 
Remaining 
to allocate 

Page 24



Cultural and Economic Services Committee

Date:  11 March 2019

Title:  Youth Film Club 

Purpose of the Report: To propose a pilot project to assess local 
take-up for a Youth Film Club longer-
term.

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 
Economic Services 

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Three Year Plan – 
Aim: To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership 
working and initiatives including management of the street 
market, support for local businesses, town and community 
promotions and town centre enhancements. (This work will be 
primarily within the remit of the Cultural & Economic Services 
Committee.)
Objective 27: To consider ways to support the increase in 
leisure and personal development opportunities for youth.

Implications:
Financial √ Within existing budget / earmarked reserves
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery
Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To run a pilot Youth Film Club to ascertain the viability and interest for a 
local scheme for long-term investment. 

1.2 To endorse that the sum of £2,400 be utilised from Committee’s 
earmarked reserve budget (970/9057) to facilitate the pilot project. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 At its meeting on 28/01/19, Council endorsed the Five-Year Plan and 
Objectives for 2019-2024.  Key to this Committee is the corporate aim: 

 To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working and 
initiatives including management of the street market, support for local 

Page 25

Agenda Item 9



 
businesses, town and community promotions and town centre 
enhancements. (This work will be primarily within the remit of the Cultural & 
Economic Services Committee.)

2.2  Beneath this aim are 11 objectives.  Objective No. 27 states:

 To consider ways to support the increase in leisure and personal 
development opportunities for youth.

3. INTRODUCTION

3.1 The Council is already in a successful partnership with the Leighton Buzzard 
Library Theatre (Central Bedfordshire Council) delivering the scheme ‘Movies 
for the More Mature’ (MMM). Considering the above objective, discussion has 
taken place between officers around delivering an affordable film club for local 
youth. The Library staff were supportive of this idea and researched how they 
thought it could work. A proposal document is attached at Appendix A.

3.2 It is proposed to deliver a pilot for early evening film screenings, once a week 
from Friday 19 July until Friday 6 September 2019 inclusive, for local young 
people between 13-17 years of age.  

3.3 The cost of the pilot to the Town Council is £2,400. The Library Theatre will 
cover delivery of the screening - background film research/booking 
administration, promotional leaflets planning, on the day staffing of the 
screenings, venue costs, etc. It is proposed to utilise Committee’s existing 
earmarked reserves budget, 970/9057.

3.4 Should the pilot prove popular, Committee will be asked to continue the Youth 
Film Club on the same lines as it does MMM, through a service level agreement 
between the two parties initially using earmarked reserves for the remainder of 
the year and then, if Committee is minded to, recommending to Council to 
create an annual budget line for future years. 

4. CONCLUSION

4.1 Committee has an opportunity to pilot a film club for local young people within
the town and using local services. The pilot supports the aim of keeping our 
town vibrant with local use and activities as well as exploring what may work 
for young people. 

Page 26



CULTURAL AND ECONOMIC SERVICES             11 March 2019 APPENDIX A

Central Bedfordshire Council
www.centralbedfordshire.gov.uk

Youth Film Club
2019 proposal for film pilot

Overview
This document sets out how Leighton-Linslade Town Council and Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre can 
work together in delivering an eight-week Youth Film Club pilot, which is aimed at young people who 
attend schools within Leighton Buzzard.

Aims and objectives
The pilot seeks to:

 Provide weekly films aimed at a young audience

 Provide a cultural experience for young people locally

 Provide a safe space for young people

 Provide club ID

 Provide an affordable experience for young people locally

Target audience
The target audience is 13 to 17-year olds. With the current three-tier school system within Leighton 
Buzzard, this would enable local school children affordable access to a cultural activity in a safe place 
during the early evening.

Logistics
Membership: It is suggested that Leighton-Linslade Town Council create membership cards as a means of 
verification, which can be issued via Leighton-Linslade Town Council, middle schools and upper schools 
within Leighton Buzzard. It is recommended that there is no bureaucratic process, such as form filling or 
information collection for database management to enable young people qualify for the club, as this will 
inherently be off putting and will form a barrier with regard to attendance.

Other provisions: Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre shall:

 Provide early evening film screenings, once a week from Friday 19 July until Friday 6 September 2019 
inclusive.

o Ensure films are suitable for the age range (certificate 12A in the main)

 Provide Box Office and lounge facilities (for the purchase of soft drinks and light snacks).

 Provide full staffing for each event to meet all Public Entertainment License and Health and Safety 
requirements.

Page 27



 Publicise the Youth Film Club through Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre’s normal advertising channels, 
including the theatre brochure and social media.

 Reduce ticket prices for club members at £2.60 (plus £1 booking fee).

 Provide the attendance figures and broader analysis of data following the pilot.

Finances
Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre seeks a financial contribution of £2,400 toward the costs incurred for all 
screenings that are part of the pilot. This contribution would enable the theatre to screen a maximum of 8 
films which are tailored to a younger demographic from mid-July to early September 2019.

A financial contribution would also enable Leighton Buzzard Library Theatre to charge young people £2.60 
per film (plus £1 booking fee), which is 61-66 percent cheaper than cinema’s in Milton Keynes, Luton and 
Aylesbury. In addition to this, young people would not need to travel far to experience quality cinema.

Next steps
If the pilot is a success and future funding is available, it is suggested that both parties reconvene 
discussions with a view to include a summer Youth Film Club at Leighton Buzzard Theatre per annum. If 
there is interest in films during the autumn or winter, it is recommended that a test or pilot during the 
season of interest is trialled to ensure parents are willing to allow young people to attend after school and 
when the evenings are much darker. If these pilots are successful both parties should reconvene 
discussions with a view to include a Youth Film Club at Leighton Buzzard Theatre for a set number of films 
per year per season, starting in July 2020.

*Notes (standard ticket prices)

Odeon Aylesbury: 
Monday to Thursday from 5pm, Child (12 years and under) £7, £7.75, £8.00 & £8.75. Teen (ages 13-17.) 
£7.50, £8.25, £8.75 and £9.50. Pricing is depending on the type of film shown from 5pm onwards.

Odeon Milton Keynes: Additional fees apply – blockbusters +£1 and +75p booking fee.

Off peak Monday to Thursday before 5pm, Child (12 years and under) £6.75 & £7.50. Teen (ages 13-17.) 
£7.25 & £8. 

Peak Monday to Thursday before 5pm and all-day Friday to Sunday. Child (12 years and under) £8.25 & 
£9. Teen (ages 13-17.) £8.50 & £9.25. 

Cineworld Luton and Milton Keynes:

Monday to Friday before 5pm child £6.80. After 5pm child £8.50

N.B. Odeon Cinemas run an Odeon Kids club (from £3.50) which offers certificate U and PG films and is 
available to children and their parents. These screenings are available on weekends and during the 
summer holidays.

Page 28



Cineworld run a Juniors club which require adults to attend also (all under 14-year olds must be 
accompanied by an adult and all over 16s must be accompanied with a child). £2.50 for children’s films 
and £5.50 for blockbusters.

Neither of these options are directly comparable with the Leighton Buzzard Offer.

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 30



Cultural and Economic Services Committee

Date:  11 March 2019

Title:  s106 project spend

Purpose of the Report: To seek Committee endorsement for 
spend

Contact Officer: Vivien Cannon, Head of Cultural and 
Economic Services 

Corporate 
Objective/s

LLTC Three Year Plan – 
Aim: To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership 
working and initiatives including management of the street market, 
support for local businesses, town and community promotions and 
town centre enhancements. 

Implications:
Financial √ S106 planning development income 
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery
Procedural/Legal √ Financial regulations for quotes
Risk/Health and 
Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION/S

Should members be minded, the proposals are:

1.1 To endorse the four projects identified for allocation of Section 106, 
planning gain funds as listed in para 2.3.

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 At its meeting on 28/01/19, Council endorsed the Five-Year Plan and 
Objectives for 2019-2024.  Key to this Committee is the corporate aim: 

 To continue to support a vibrant town through partnership working and 
initiatives including management of the street market, support for local 
businesses, town and community promotions and town centre 
enhancements. 

2.2 Over recent months officers from Central Bedfordshire Council (CBC) have 
approached the Town Clerk and Head of Service for Cultural and Economic 
Services on the issue of allocating the spend of section 106 funds received by 
CBC as a result of the development of the Grovebury Road based retail park.  
To date, CBC officers have drawn down £50k allocated to be spent in the town 
centre. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 10



 

2.3 Four projects are proposed to allocate this initial release of funds to towards 
continuing with ongoing town centre enhancements:

a) Bell Alley resurfacing – recent High Street Improvement Funds and private 
investment has improved the  presentation of the alleyway and shops. The 
surfacing of the alley however remains uneven and tired. As a link between 
a town centre car park and High Street, the proposal is to use funds for its 
resurfacing. 

b) Town Centre Wi-Fi – at its meeting on 03/09/18, Committee resolved to 
instruct officers to investigate further the potential for delivery of town centre 
Wi-Fi provision for future Committee consideration. At the same meeting, 
CBC offiecrs were in attendance following an expression to support the 
Town Council in achieveing this project. Whilst committee identified a 
budget, CBC officers proposed the spend of s106 funds to this end.  

c) Relocation of Christmas tree - over recent years officers have been 
unable to secure the agreement of the Christmas tree supplier to utilise the 
ground socket. Refusal is based on there being no structural certificate 
available to inform the supplier of a stated safe loading capacity. This has 
resulted in securing a tree that is not the quality desired yet suitable to be 
placed in a self-standing container. A newly engineered hole is therefore 
required. 

The location of tree does cause disruption to the weekly market and limits 
the use of the space in that area. The long-term plan is for the market to 
expand within this area subject to the relocation of certain bollards located 
thereabouts thus opening the area up. The tree will become more of a 
problem with this plan. 

The Market Cross is already a feature at the top of the High Street. Digging 
in the area is unfavoured due to the proximity of the Market Cross.  It is 
proposed to relocate the tree socket to the opposite end of the High Street 
in the centre of the ‘entertainment circle’. This would address the need for 
an engineered socket whilst also serving the purpose of spreading the focus 
of attention along the whole length of the High Street.

d) Road barrier/bollards – explore ideas to help manage access to the High 
Street on market days, (feasibility study).

3. CONCLUSIONS

3.1 Whilst it is unlikely that all four projects will be achieved with the current amount 
of available funds, more funds will be made available in due course thereby 
allowing feasibility work to be achieved in the first instance.  

END

Page 32



Cultural and Economic Services Committee

Date:  11 March 2019

Title:  Town Band  

Purpose of the Report: To seek Member endorsement to the 
principle of creating the title of “Town 
Band” 

Contact Officer: Mark Saccoccio, Town Clerk  

Corporate Objective/s LLTC Five Year Plan – 
Objective 24: To continue to deliver quality community events 
and regularly review their scope and delivery

Implications:
Financial √ To be considered at the next meeting of the Cultural and 

Economic Services Committee to be held 3rd June 2019 
Human Resources
Operational/Service 
delivery

√ An element of co-ordination will be required

Procedural/Legal
Risk/Health and Safety

1. RECOMMENDATION

Should members be minded, the proposal is:

1.1 To seek Member endorsement to the principle of appointing a Town Band 
to represent the Parish at high profile events including certain Mayoral 
Functions. 

2. BACKGROUND 

2.1 The Town Council has been approached by a Leighton-Linslade based band 
requesting consideration be given to the potential of appointing a town band.  
As a status, the title of town band would afford the recipient certain privileges. 
Namely, it would allow the band opportunity to represent the parish at events 
outside the parish, be the band of first resort for Mayoral functions as well as 
other high-profile events within the parish. At this stage, any financial 
implications have not been considered as it is the principle that is being sought 
here. The successful band could for example be encouraged to apply for town 
council grant funding (twice-yearly application process is run) to help to support 
certain costs associated with the accolade. 

Page 33

Agenda Item 12



 

2.2 Should Members be minded in supporting the principle, it is considered 
reasonable and appropriate that expressions of interest be sought from other 
parish bands in the first instance. By doing this, the process is considered open 
and transparent by giving all interested parties opportunity to apply. 

The Process 

2.3 It is anticipated that during the month of April, expressions of interest will be 
sought. This will be done by way of a social media campaign to include 
meaningful engagement with the Leighton Buzzard Observer. Any expressions 
of interest received will be presented to the next meeting of the Cultural and 
Economic Services Committee Meeting to be held on Monday 3rd June 2019.  
As the Town Council nears the local government elections, it is considered 
appropriate for the new administration to influence any decision. 

2.4 In order to satisfy the Town Council, any interested band will have to show that:

i) Good governance by having in place a constitution as well as a 
managerial structure;

ii) Effective mutual working by being able to demonstrate a willingness to 
work in partnership with the Town Council and the community;

iii) Strong positive ties with the community;
iv) The type of band and how they would align with the town’s music 

programme or other;
v) Quality Assurance – a resume of previous performances;
vi) Evaluation process which is to be determined at the Culture and 

Economic Services Committee Meeting to be held 3rd June 2019;
vii) A commitment that the successful band can perform on dates as 

requested;

Future Relationship

2.5 Whilst the detail has yet to be determined, it is likely that in return for the title of 
Town Band, the successful band would be required to enter into a Service Level 
Agreement with the Town Council which is likely to run for 3 years. At the end 
of the term, the process as set out above will be re-run. By doing this, it 
encourages competition as well as maintain or indeed improve standards. 

 

Page 34


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS
	5 SUB-COMMITTEE AND TASK GROUP MINUTES
	6 COMMITTEE OBJECTIVES AND WORK PLAN
	Cultural & Economic Services Work Plan 2019-20

	7 TACTIC UPDATE
	8 BUDGET REPORT
	9 YOUTH FILM CLUB
	Appendix A Youth Film Club Proposal

	10 ALLOCATION OF S106 FUNDS REPORT
	12 TOWN BAND

